MINUTES OF THE HEARING HELD IN ATLANTIC BEACH COMMISSION CHAMBERS AT
6:06 PM ON MONDAY, MAY 5, 2008 TO SETTLE THE IMPASSE IN NEGOTIATIONS
BETWEEN THE CITY OF ATLANTIC BEACH AND NORTHEAST FLORIDA PUBLIC
EMPLOYEES’ LOCAL 630, LIUNA, AFL-CIO BLUE COLLAR AND WHITE COLLAR
UNIONS

Present: John S. Meserve, Mayor
Mike Borno, Mayor Pro Tem
John Fletcher, Commissioner

Absent: Paul B. Parsons, Commissioner (excused absence)
Carolyn Woods, Commissioner

Also: Jim Hanson, City Manager
Alan C. Jensen, City Attorney
Nancy Bailey, Administrative Assistant to City Clerk
Andy Bemis, Union Negotiator
Jack Baldwin, Union Steward
George Foster, City Negotiator

The Mayor called the meeting to order at 6:06 pm and explained this hearing was for the purpose of
resolving an impasse in contract negotiations with the City and Northeast Florida Public Employees’
Local 630, LIUNA, AFL-CIO Blue Collar and White Collar Unions and asked the City Attorney to
explain the legal standpoint of the hearing.

Alan Jensen explained, under Chapter 447 of the Florida Statutes, there is a procedure set forth for
the resolution of impasses which requires, at this stage, for the City Commission, acting as a
legislative body, to conduct a public hearing. He stated at that public hearing both sides are required
to explain their positions with respect to the impasse issues after which the floor will be open to
public comments. The Commission will then take action as it deems to be in the public interest,
which would include the interest of the public employees involved, to resolve all disputed issues.

The Mayor reiterated it is the duty of this legislative body to take such action as it deems to be in the
public interest, including the interest of the public employees, to resolve all disputed impasse issues,
stating these procedures are intended to provide the parties with an opportunity to present their
position and have their position fully and fairly considered. He stated there are two issues, (1)
pension vesting change from five to ten years for new employees, and (2) the effective date of the
employee pay raises. Mayor Meserve explained the procedures that would be used tonight, stating
each party would have ten minutes to present their case with three minutes allowed for rebuttal,
following which the public would be given an opportunity to address the City Commission and

1



would be asked to limit their remarks to three minutes. He explained the City would go first since
they declared the impasse. Following the presentations and public comments, the City Commission
may ask questions and then will render a decision on the issues at impasse.

George Foster, Chief Negotiator for the City, stated prior to addressing the impasse issues he
would address the issues within the Union letter dated April 4, 2008, as provided to the City and City
Commissioners on the impasse items. He explained the date of the letter is April 4, and it was his
understanding that it was hand delivered to the Commissioners on April 11, but was not received by
the City until April 16, with a postmark of April 15, 2008. He stated the letter indicates the City
came to negotiations with six items, plus wages to negotiate, which is in violation of the Union
contract. He stated this was not correct, there were only three articles plus wages presented for
negotiations. He stated, in the City’s August 2 letter to the Union, it identified Articles 7, 11, and 20,
plus wages for negotiation. Mr. Foster further stated the Union did not propose to open any Articles
at the first negotiation session. He stated the Union further incorrectly indicated within their letter
that the City proposed changes to health insurance. He stated the City did discuss with the Union the
changes being made to health insurance and the options the City considered and the City did propose
changing general employee pension vesting for new hires from five years to ten years. He stated the
Union’s letter indicates they accepted the City’s pay proposal, however, they did so only after they
had pay proposal increases submitted that were higher than those proposed by the City and only later
agreed to accept the City’s wage offer. He stated the Union letter indicated they pulled the top out
bonus item off the table, which he stated was withdrawn at one meeting but was reintroduced at the
next meeting. He stated this item was also listed within those items for impasse in the Union’s
summary of open items for the Special Magistrate hearing. He explained during negotiations the
Union requested five items: a higher pay increase than proposed by the City; an increase to
employee comp time accrual rates; an increase to longevity pay; an addition to a cost of living top
out bonus for employees at the maximum pay; and a shift differential pay. He explained the City did
declare impasse in writing only after the Union had consistently stated they would never agree to
change pension vesting for new employees to ten years. Mr. Foster then presented the City’s
position on the issues at impasse, as follows:

1. Pension vesting:

Referring to Tab 8, Exhibit PV 7 in the green notebook (which is attached and made part of
this Official Record as Attachment A), Mr. Foster explained the reasons the City wanted to
change pension vesting from five to ten years was to reduce the overall cost of the pension
plan to the City and to ensure pension benefits are provided to long term employees rather
than short term employees. He stated the funded ratio (the extent that the plan assets cover
the plan liabilities) has been relatively steady and is currently 72.4%. He stated the unfunded
actuarial accrued liability (which indicates the excess of any of the plan liabilities over
assets) has been increasing and is currently at 90.6%. He stated generally the smaller these
numbers, the stronger the pension plan but both of these numbers have trends that have been
going in the wrong direction. Mr. Foster also referred to Tab 8, Exhibit PV 8 (which is
attached and made part of this Official Record as Attachment B), which he stated indicates

2



an example of the benefit for an employee with five years of service upon retirement and
believes the current plan provides for a relatively generous benefit. He stated the City is
recommending pension vesting be changed for new employees only from five years to ten
years.

2. Effective date of pay increases for employees

Referring to the City Manager’s letter, dated April 7, Mr. Foster read the following excerpt,
“The past practice of the City Commission has been to provide retroactivity for pay when the
impasse is resolved. Non-union City employees received raises on October 1* and the raises
are budgeted for all City employees for a full year. However, full retroactivity does not
encourage timely resolution of Union issues. Input from the Unions should be received prior
to the budget workshops in August so that the Mayor and Commissioners can take their
concerns into consideration. During negotiation sessions last year, the first meeting could
not be scheduled until August 2 and the Union came to the first negotiation session with no
items to negotiate. At the following negotiating meetings, the Union added items and/or
changed items, but never had any counter proposals for the City’s request to change pension
vesting for new employees. At the special magistrate hearing, the Union submitted a verbal
counter proposal that they would be willing to have employee pension contribution rates
increase in order to maintain the current five year pension vesting. The City Commission
should determine if any, or full, retroactivity of pay is appropriate.” Mr. Foster reiterated the
union requested a higher pay increase than proposed by the City, an increase to employee
comp time accrual retention, an increase to longevity pay, an addition to an increase in the
cost of living, a top out bonus for employees at their maximum pay and a shift differential

pay.

Andy Bemis, Business Manager and Chief Negotiator for Local 630, explained the City and the
Union hit a deadlock in negotiations which led the City to declare impasse. He stated the Union did
not feel as though negotiations had reached that point. He stated both sides then presented their sides
to the Special Magistrate who rejected the Union’s proposal for top out bonus and increase in
longevity but agreed that the pay increase should be retroactive to October 1, 2007. He stated the
Special Magistrate compromised on the pension vesting for new employees by recommending seven
years. At that point the Union was willing to accept the Special Magistrate’s recommendations, but
the City rejected them, which is why they are here tonight. He stated the pay increase was budgeted
effective October 1, 2007 but what is in question is the fact that the City’s pay proposal and the
pension vesting proposal were presented as a package deal. He stated he contests that, stating they
were presented at the same time, but were not presented as a package deal. Referring to Exhibit H of
the Union’s package (which is attached and made part of this Official Record as Attachment C) he
stated the Union agreed to the City’s proposals in September. Referring to Exhibit R (which is
attached and made part of this Official Record as Attachment D), he stated it never implies that the
two proposals are a package deal until the minutes from the October 1, 2007 meeting. He stated the

3






